# The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong 香港牙科醫學院



1997-1998 Annual Report

# The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong

Faculty of Dentistry Prince Philip Dental Hospital 34 Hospital Road Hong Kong SAR

#### Secretariat

Dr. Michael NY Chau
CGO Dental Clinics
7/F, West Wing
Central Government Offices
Lower Albert Road, Central
Hong Kong SAR

Telephone: (852) 2810 2601 Facsimile: (852) 2530 3437

#### Contents

		Page
1.	PRESIDENT'S REPORT	2
2.	REPORT OF THE COUNCIL AND COMMITTEES	
	Council	4
	Education & Examinations Committee	5
	Specialty Board in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery	6
	Specialty Board in Orthodontics	7
	Specialty Board in Paediatric Dentistry	7
	Subcommittee on Accreditation and Training in Restorative Dentistry	8
	Ad hoc Group in Periodontology	8
	Ad hoc Group in Public Dental Health	8
	Ad hoc Group in Prosthodontics	9
	Ad hoc Group in Endodontics	9
	Subcommittee on Education and Examinations for GDP	9
	Continuing Medical Education Subcommittee	10
	Organising Committee of the First International Congress of HKAM	12
	Membership Committee	12
	Scientific Meetings Committee	14
	Dental Specialist Manpower Committee	14
	Newsletter	14
	College Chamber	14
3.	TREASURER'S REPORT	15
4.	COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES AND SUBCOMMITTEES	16
5.	PANELS OF EXAMINERS FOR CONJOINT EXAMINATIONS	19
6.	MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY 1998	20

#### PRESIDENT'S REPORT

It is my first duty to express my gratitude to the Fellows for my third year in office as President. Each succeeding year in the College seems to have resulted in more challenges and opportunities for continued development.

This year is obviously a very significant one for the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and it is pleasing that our Scientific Meeting and our Annual General Meeting take place virtually coincident with the First International Congress of the Academy. Those who have been involved in the affairs of the College from its inception will know that our status as a constituent founding College of the Academy was by no means straightforward. The effort that was expended at that time came to fruition and it is most fit and proper that the profession from which we come is very much a part of Hong Kong's most senior specialist organisation covering all the Health Disciplines.

The opening of the Academy Building has now provided access to our new College chambers. I would wish to place on record the College's gratitude to Dr. Roch Lee for having overseen the furbishment of this room which I hope you will find most suitable and elegant. As I said in my appeal for sponsorship of the internal decoration, the Chamber is the image which the College presents to visitors of all kinds, so I thank those twenty-eight Fellows who have contributed to the fund.

A notable event in the year has been the further development of the Conjoint Examinations with the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh. On this occasion specialties which have joined the list are Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery and Paediatric Dentistry. We continue to be deeply appreciative of the liaison with the Edinburgh College over these examinations and also those concerned with General Dental Practice. A major task which lies ahead is the final structure of our Exit Examination, demands for which are likely to be upon us sooner than we expect.

The need for the establishment of our Exit Examination is pressing because of the Academy's rescission of By-law 16 - effectively the 'grandfather' clause set up at the institution of the Academy. This has focused the minds of our Education Committee and our Membership Committee and I thank them, especially their Chairmen, Professor Hägg and Dr. Ling, for the extra work that has been involved in implementing our procedures so that eligible candidates could be presented for Fellowship by the deadline set by the Academy. This process has also been without its inherent problems, but I am confident that Committee Members and Officers have treated all applicants in a completely equitable fashion which must be of great importance for the standing and credibility of our College. One most pleasant outcome is the fact that we shall be admitting thirty-four Fellows today which brings our total College membership to 156.

Although it will be left to others to cite their achievements, I must express my personal satisfaction and pleasure upon the two Honorary Fellowships that will be awarded today. One in some senses, acknowledges the professional roots we have in the British traditions, and the other reinforces our ongoing role in the People's Republic of China of which we are now a part. I am also pleased to welcome our other Honorary Fellows who are present,

from Shanghai and Guangzhou. It is always a delight to welcome them back to our midst and to remind ourselves of our mission to maintain the closest possible collaboration with our sister specialties in the Mainland.

At the Diploma Award Ceremony of the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh earlier this month, I was able to witness the award of Fellowships to two of our colleagues who have played an important part in our development. Professor Henk Tideman received the Fellowship in Dental Surgery *ad hominem* and Dr. Tak Chow, who continues to serve on Council, was awarded the Fellowship without examination. The College of Dental Surgeons participated in this Ceremony together with our sister colleges of Surgery and of Otorhinolaryngology and that, too, was an indication of the ties which bind the constituent colleges in the Academy of Medicine.

I would extend my sincere gratitude to all Members of the College Council who have contributed to our deliberations and our decision-making over the year. I particularly thank those who have gone on to give generously of their time to implement College policies. I would wish to mention Dr. Michael Chau, our Secretary, for he has the task of liaising between the Council and myself, and when the President is not always available at just the right time, life for a Secretary can be rather fraught. Dr. Chau has coped splendidly and deserves our admiration for the quiet efficiency with which he fulfils his duty. As new elections will bring in new blood and new ideas to the Council, a process which I regard as of great importance in my organisation, I bid farewell to members leaving the Council. They leave with our thanks and our very best wishes.

I cannot emphasise strongly enough how vital it is that all Fellows feel a part of the whole organisation. The Council expends much effort on your behalf, but it is your College, it is your support, it is your involvement which will ultimately dictate our success. I believe the College has the right to look to all Fellows for such support if we are to adhere to our primary purpose of continuously extending and enhancing clinical practice in the Dental Specialties so as to serve the community in Hong Kong.

Professor WIR Davies President

#### REPORT OF THE COUNCIL & COMMITTEES

#### Council

The College Council consists of 15 Councillors and it held a total of eleven meetings from December 1997 to November 1998. Six Officers were elected from among the Councillors so that the composition of the Council became as follows:

President
1st Vice President
2nd Vice President
Honorary Secretary
Honorary Treasurer
Censor-In-Chief
Councillors

Professor W I R Davies Professor Urban Hägg Dr. Lee Kwing Hong Dr. Michael Chau N Y Dr. Joseph Chan C Y Dr. John Ling Y K Dr. Franklin Chan F Y

Dr. Franklin Chan F Y
Dr. Chow Tak Wah
Dr. Peter Chung C K
Dr. Esmonde Corbet
Dr. Lillian Low-Chen
Dr. Jeffrey Tsang Y S
Professor Stephen Wei HY

Dr. Caesar Wong P N Dr. Bill Yan S W

#### **EDUCATION & EXAMINATIONS COMMITTEE**

Chairman

Professor Urban Hägg

Deputy Chairman

Dr. B Yan (Specialty Board in Oral & Maxillofacial

Surgery)

Secretary

Dr. P Chung

Members

Dr. J Chan

(Specialty Board in Paediatric Dentistry)

Dr. J Ling

(Specialty Board in Orthodontics)

Dr. T Chow\* (Subcommittee on Education and

Examinations for GDP)

Dr. E Corbet\* (Subcommittee on Accreditation and Training

in Restorative Dentistry SATRD, up to

September 1998)

Dr. J Tsang

co-opted from October 1998 (from dissolved

SATRD)

Dr. G Cheung (Ad hoc Group in Endodontics)

Dr. T Chow\* (Ad hoc Group in Prosthodontics)

Dr. E Corbet\* (Ad hoc Group in Periodontology)

Dr. E Lo

(Ad hoc Group in Public Dental Health)

The Education Committee (EC) meets once a month the week before the Council Meeting and two weeks prior to the monthly meeting of the Education Committee of Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. The EC consists of the Chairmen of the Sub-Committees on Accreditation and Training in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery, Orthodontics, Paediatric Dentistry and Restorative Dentistry. Following the approval of three specialties in dentistry (Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery, Orthodontics and Paediatric Dentistry) by the HKAM Education Committee in July 1998, the name of the respective Sub-Committee on Accreditation and Training was changed to "Specialty Board" of the discipline. "Approval" included definition of the specialty, justification of the specialty, approval of Supervisor/s, Trainers and Training Centres, and an update of the Training Pathways Since the HKAM decided to recognise specialties only and not approved in 1994. subspecialties, Restorative Dentistry as a specialty comprising a number of subspecialties could not be justified. In September the Sub-Committee on Restorative Dentistry was dissolved, and four representatives representing four potential specialties were co-opted to the Education Committee for a period up to 6 months, and have started their work in October 1998.

#### The EC

Endorsed the specialties in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery, Orthodontics and Paediatric Dentistry (Description, Justification, approval of Supervisor/s, Trainers, Training Centres and an up-date of Training Pathways) – (Approved by HKAM).

<sup>\*</sup>Fellows who served the Committee in more than one capacity or capacity has changed.

- Listed Fellows who are specialists in the three approved specialties.
- Listed Trainees in the three approved specialties were given log books.
- Defined the additional training and signed contracts with potential fellows to be admitted under By-law 16 (5 potential fellows in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery and 4 in Orthodontics; the remedial training and supervisors for the 16 potential fellows from the Restorative sector are to be finalised when the "new" specialties have been approved).
- Started to prepare for other potential specialties from the former Restorative sector.
- Revised and endorsed a list of recognised qualifications, which is in effect from October 1, 1998 (Approved by HKAM)

#### **EXAMINATIONS**

- MGDS Examinations were held in May and November 1998.
- The Conjoint Examination in Paediatric Dentistry was held in November 1998 (Intermediate Examination)
- The Conjoint Examination in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery was held in November 1998 (Intermediate Examination)
- The Conjoint Intermediate Examination and the Exit Examination in Orthodontics are planned for November 1999.

Professor Urban Hägg Chairman

#### 1. Specialty Board in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery

The key issues for 1997-98 were accreditation and examination.

- The Specialty Board in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (SBOMS) had received an application for accreditation from the United Christian Hospital (UCH) Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery Network of the Hospital Authority Training Programme. The SBOMS was satisfied with the UCH Training Programme after a visitation and has recommended to the Education Committee for accreditation accordingly. Visitation had also been conducted by representatives from the Education Committee to the University and Government Training Institutes in April and continuous accreditation of both programmes was endorsed.
- The SBOMS had endorsed that the Intermediate Examination be a conjoint examination with the Membership in Oral Surgery Examination (MOS RCSEd) held by the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh. The inaugural Intermediate Examination in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery was held from 17-20 November 1998. In this inaugural diet, Professor H Tideman was appointed as Chief Examiner from CDSHK, supported by Dr. K K Chau and Dr. N Sammon, with Dr. S W Yan as Observer. The Examiners from Edinburgh were Professor J Cowpe and Mr. G E Lello. A total of five candidates took part in the Conjoint Examination. The following candidates were successful:

Dr. Hui Hin Ming, Alex Dr. Leung Chun Fung, Albert Dr. To Chun Yin, Peter Dr. Wong Siu Leung

Dr. Bill Yan S W Chairman

#### 2. Specialty Board in Orthodontics

- The Orthodontic Department of Prince Philip Dental Hospital (Faculty of Dentistry, University of Hong Kong), Yaumatei Jockey Club and Central Government Offices Dental Clinics (Department of Health) were recognised as training units for Orthodontics.
- Four trainees in the higher training programme were expected to complete their additional training in order to fulfil requirements for Fellowships of the College and Academy of Medicine under By-law 16. The registrants will sit for an exit assessment after the additional training.
- A total of 9 trainees in Basic training of the pathway were expected to sit for the Conjoint MOrth RCSEd / FCDSHK (Intermediate) Examination in Orthodontics in 1999.

Dr. John Ling Y K Chairman

#### 3. Specialty Board in Paediatric Dentistry

During the year 1997-1998 the following issues were discussed:

- There was much dialogue with the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh resulting in the first Conjoint Examination in Paediatric Dentistry between our College and the Edinburgh College. This examination was held from 17-20 November 1998 with four candidates participating.
- The Specialty Board has made submission through the College to the Academy of Medicine to recognise Paediatric Dentistry as a specialty in the Academy.
- The Specialty Board has considered and recommended to the College and the Academy of Medicine a list of internationally recognised higher qualifications.
- The Specialty Board has requested all trainees to complete their registration with the Board.

Dr. Joseph Chan C Y Chairman

# 4. Subcommittee on Accreditation and Training in Restorative Dentistry (SATRD) (December 1997 - September 1998)

Chairmanship of SATRD passed from Dr. Chow Tak Wah to Dr. Esmonde Corbet early in the period of this report. The SATRD considered the cases of 15 applicants for admission as Fellow under By-law 16. Ten of these are considered to be trainees and appropriate follow-up action is being taken to ensure that these 10 trainees agree to the further higher training requirements and the deadlines.

By mutual agreement of "Restorative Fellows", the SATRD was disestablished in September 1998. *Ad hoc* Groups were formed to deal with the following disciplines previously administered by the SATRD:

Endodontics
Periodontology
Prosthodontics
Public Dental Health

These *ad hoc* groups were charged with developing proposals on the recognition of individual specialties, on trainers, supervisors and training centres, and on training pathways for submission to the Education and Examinations Committee of the College.

Dr. Esmonde F Corbet Chairman

#### Ad hoc Group in Periodontology

Proposals for recognition of Periodontology as a Specialty were developed and submitted to the Education and Examinations Committee. Trainers and potential trainees were identified and a list of these was submitted, as was a list of trainers and the nomination of one supervisor. The training pathway in Periodontology is under development and will be submitted to the Education and Examinations Committee in December 1998.

Dr. Esmonde F Corbet Convenor

#### Ad hoc Group in Public Dental Health

The Ad hoc Group in Public Dental Health was formed in October 1998. Proposal for recognition of Public Dental Health as a specialty of Dentistry was submitted to the Education Committee.

Dr. Edwaud Lo C M Dr. Edwin Cheung C W Convenor(s)

#### Ad hoc Group in Prosthodontics

The Ad hoc group in Prosthodontics was formed in October 1998 after the disestablishment of the Subcommittee on Accreditation and Training in Restorative Dentistry. Proposal for recognition of Prosthodontics as a specialty of Dentistry was submitted to the Education Committee. Potential supervisors, trainers and trainees were identified and a list of these was also submitted. The training pathway in Prosthodontics is being developed and a proposal will be submitted to the Education Committee in December 1998.

Dr. Chow T W Convenor

#### Ad hoc Group in Endodontics

The Group, after discussions, agreed to apply for recognition as a specialty in the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. Draft documents were submitted and debated at the Education Committee of the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong.

The proposal was turned down because of an absence of a dedicated Master's degree in the specialty, although a number of candidates are undergoing a curriculum purely in Endodontics. The Group will consider re-applying for recognition as a specialty in the future.

Dr. Gary Cheung S P Dr Leung S F Convenor(s)

#### 5. Subcommittee on Education and Examinations for GDP (SEEGDP)

During the past 12 months, the SEEGDP met on numerous occasions. The Subcommittee organized three examinations and postgraduate courses for candidates preparing for the Conjoint Membership of General Dental Surgery (MGDS).

A 3-day course was held 19-21 January with speakers from The Royal College of Edinburgh. The Part I MGDS Examination was held on 13-15 May with 19 candidates. Fourteen candidates passed the examination.

Postgraduate seminars were given regularly from May to October by lecturers from various specialties. MGDS holders shared their experience with the candidates and provided much support.

Two candidates applied to re-sit the Part I of the MGDS examination with 12 candidates entered for the Part II of the examination. The written component and oral component of Part I together with the surgery visitation and clinical examination of Part II were held during the week beginning 16 November 1998. Examiners from the United Kingdom, China, Hong Kong and Singapore were appointed.

The Subcommittee is currently considering the requirements of a training pathway for higher qualifications in General Dental Practice in Hong Kong and shall submit a proposal to the Education Committee in due course.

The Subcommittee thanks the Education Committee and the Council of The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong for their support.

Dr. Chow T W Chairman

#### 6. Continuing Medical Education Subcommittee

#### (i) Composition of the CME-Subcommittee:

The following Fellows of the our College have been appointed as members of the CME Sub-committee:

Name of Member	Post
Dr. Roch Lee	Chairman
Prof. Urban Hagg	Ex-officio Member
Dr. Gary Cheung	Member
Dr. Chow Tak Kun	Member
Dr. Alec Tam	Member
Dr. Ken Hui	Hon. Secretary

#### (ii) The First CME Cycle:

The first three-year cycle started on 1<sup>st</sup> January 1997. Thereafter new Fellows commenced their respective CME cycle on either 1<sup>st</sup> July of the same year or 1<sup>st</sup> January of the subsequent year, whichever date is the next nearest. The date of commencement was recorded for each and every Fellow. Our College required a minimum of 90 CME credits over the three-year cycle.

#### (iii) Status of Eligible and Active Fellows with respect to CME Activities:

No. of Fellows starting the 1 <sup>st</sup> cycle of CME activities on 1 <sup>st</sup> January 1997	==	155
No. of Fellows starting the 1 <sup>st</sup> cycle of CME activities on 1 <sup>st</sup> July 1997	=	5
No. of Fellows starting the 1 <sup>st</sup> cycle of CME activities on 1 <sup>st</sup> January 1998	=	8
No. of Fellows starting the 1 <sup>st</sup> cycle of CME activities on 1 <sup>st</sup> July 1998	=	8
No. of Fellows starting the 1 <sup>st</sup> cycle of CME activities on 1 <sup>st</sup> January 1999	=	25

#### (iv) Accreditation of CME points:

Out of the 115 Fellows who started the cycle on 1.1.97, a total of 74 of them (64.3%) have registered their CME activities with our Sub-Committee. The following table is a summary of their CME scores:

CME point scores	No. of Fellows	Percentage of Fellows
60 or above	37	32.17%
30 to 59	10	8.70%
20 to 29	8	6.96%
10 to 19	6	5.22%
1 to 9	13	11.30%
0	41	35.65%
Total	115	100.00%

Remarks: A total of 37 Fellows (32.17%) have scored 60 or more CME credits, meeting the required credits up to the end of the second year of the three-year cycle. Out of which the highest no. of CME credits scored by a Fellow is 357.5 points.

#### (v) "Handbook on Continuing Medical Education" and "Personal Diary for CME Points"

The number of Fellows having no CME scores registered with our CME Sub-committee is still considered to be high. In our opinion, these Fellows failed or forgot to send in their CME application rather than scoring no CME points at all.

For the purpose of reminding and encouraging all Fellows to submit their CME applications promptly, our CME Sub-committee has designed two booklets, "Handbook on Continuing Medical Education" and "Personal Diary for CME Points", to be sent to all Fellows. These booklets should be ready for dispatch by the time Fellows are reading this report.

Dr. Roch Lee K H Chairman

#### 7. Organizing Committee of the First International Congress of HKAM

The representative of the College of Dental Surgeons in the Organizing Committee (OC) is Professor Urban Hägg. The Co-Chairmen of OC are the President of HKAM Dr. David Fang and Dr. C. H. Leong. A number of themes for symposiums were listed by the Organizing Committee and the 15 Colleges were invited to propose topics and speakers. The College of Dental Surgeons listed a number of topics/speakers out of which two were accepted - Trauma (Dr. Jens Andreasen, Denmark) and Congenital Anomalies (Professor Nigel King, HKU). A full-day satellite symposium on "Recent Advances in Traumatic Injuries" by Dr. Jens Andreasen has also been organized on Sunday November 29, 1998, open also for students and non-members (the arrangement has been finalized together with the Scientific Meetings Committee of the College and its Chairman, Dr. Joseph Chan). A number of abstracts had been submitted by the Fellows and vetted by three senior academic Fellows.

Professor Urban Hägg College Representative in the Organizing Committee

#### **MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE**

During this year, the Membership Committee held three meetings. Sixty-two applicants were individually screened and 34 applicants were submitted to Council for endorsement and admission as Fellows of the College. Thirty-nine applicants applied for the Academy Fellowship via the College under By-law 16, 36 applicants being successful and 3 applicants were advised to undergo additional training. All unsuccessful applicants for admission under By-law 16 were notified. As the deadline for admission under By-law 16 has already lapsed, all potential Fellows will be considered as trainees, and they shall contact the respective Specialty Boards or Sub-Committees on Accreditation and Training, in their particular dental disciplines, of the Education and Examinations Committee for the training pathway.

Year of 1998	Number
Number of applicants screened	62
Number of successful applicants admitted as Fellows of CDSHK	34
Number of successful applicants admitted as Fellows of HKAM (Dental	36
Surgery)- included 5 carried over from 1997	
Number of new Honorary Fellows of CDSHK	2
Number of applicants rejected as being ineligible for admission under By-law	
16 of HKAM	
Number of applicants accepted as trainees and referred to the various Specialty	15
Boards and Subcommittees - included 3 rejected by HKAM	
Number of applicants not accepted for various reasons as current trainees -	
advised to contact Specialty Boards and Subcommittees	
Number of meetings held	3

In addition to the processing of 62 applicants for admission as fellows, and all the work that this involved, the committee also discussed a range of issues, which included the category of Membership of the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong allowed under the M & A of the College. This proposal was accepted by the College Council. Advice was sought from the Education and Examinations Committee on the status of certain overseas higher dental qualifications held by candidates for admission under By-law 16.

List of Fellows admitted to the College (in alphabetical order):

Dr. Chai Y. John

Dr. Castelluci Carlo

Dr. Chan Chi Hong

Dr. Chan Chi Kwong, Tommy

Dr. Chan Chi Lap, Samuel

Dr. Chen Kam Fai

Dr. Cheung Chui Wah, Edwin

Dr. Chik Fu Fai

Dr. Chow Kwok Fai

Dr. Fung Kin Yip, Kenneth

Dr. Ho Fu Tak

Dr. Ho Tat Wo, Michael

Dr. Ho Wai Mei

Dr. Hse Mei Yin, Kitty

Dr. Lam Siu Fei, Lisa

Dr. Lau Chi Kai, George

Dr. Lau Wai Sum, Eilly

Dr. Leung Wai Keung

Dr. Li Ka Lun, Thomas

Dr. Lie Ken Jie Ket Phoei, Ronny

Dr. Anne Sinclair McMillan

Dr. Mak Kwok Kwong, Gilbert

Dr. Pang Harling

Dr. Poon Hung Wai

Prof. Frederick Charles Smales

Dr. So Hon Ching, Frankie

Dr. Tong Tai Wing, Winston

Dr. Tsang Hing Suen

Dr. Beatrice Busabakorn Vattasingh

Dr. Yeung Wai Kit, Richie

Dr. Yu Ngok Fung

Dr. Yu Sek Ho, Felix

Dr. Yuen Kwok Wah

Dr. Yung Kam Ming, Louisa

The Committee wishes to acknowledge the voluntary work of Miss Nerissa Chan of Periodontology, Faculty of Dentistry for her past efforts.

Dr. John Ling Y K Censor-In-Chief

#### SCIENTIFIC MEETINGS COMMITTEE

The activities of the Committee have been in relation to the 5<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Meeting. The meeting will be held on Sunday, 29 November 1998 with Dr. Jens Andreasen as our speaker. His topic will be "Recent Advances in Dental Traumatology". This scientific meeting will be the first time when a trade exhibition will be staged simultaneously.

Dr. Joseph Chan C Y Chairman

#### DENTAL SPECIALIST MANPOWER COMMITTEE

Due to changes in the membership of this Committee including both the chairpersons, Professor Davies, Dr. Edward Lo, Dr. Bill Yan and Dr. Homer Tso have held informal talks to ascertain how coherent advice on future demands for dental specialists might be obtained..

#### **NEWSLETTER**

During the period covered by this report there have been three Newsletters, of which one was printed with colour plates.

Dr. Esmonde F. Corbet Editor

#### COLLEGE CHAMBER

The newly furbished College Chamber will come into use in the near future. The address is:

Room 902, Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Building 99, Wong Chuk Hang Road Aberdeen Hong Kong SAR Tel: 2871 8866, 2871 8891

#### TREASURER'S REPORT

The accounts of our College were audited by Messrs. Li Tang Chan & Co., Certified Public Accountant and were adopted by the College Council on 18<sup>th</sup> November 1998. For the year ended 31<sup>st</sup> March 1998, our College has a net surplus of HK\$212, 757. On the balance sheet, we have HK\$597,469 in the bank.

Our major source of income was from Members' subscriptions. Other sources of income were the 4<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Meeting, the revision course for the Conjoint MGDS Examination, and bank interest.

The only major expenditure for this year was the Conjoint Examination in Orthodontics with the Royal College Surgeons of Edinburgh. For the next financial year starting 1<sup>st</sup> April 1999, I can envisage major expenditure in the fitting and furnishing of the College Chamber at the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Building, and in the employment of secretarial staff.

I wish to take this opportunity to thank Messrs. Li Tang Chan & Co., our Honorary Auditor for auditing our accounts and to Dr. David Lau, our previous Honorary Treasurer, for his advice and support.

Dr. Joseph Chan C Y Honorary Treasurer

#### **COMMITTEES & SUBCOMMITTEES 1997-1998**

#### **Education & Examinations Committee**

Chairman

Professor Urban Hägg

Deputy Chairman

Dr. Bill Yan S W

Secretary

Dr. Peter Chung C K Dr. Joseph Chan C Y

Members

Dr. Gary Cheung S P (co-opted from October 1998)

Dr. Chow T W

Dr. Esmonde F Corbet Dr. John Ling Y K

Dr, Edward Lo C M (co-opted from October 1998)

Dr. Jeffrey Tsang Y S

There are 3 specialty boards, 3 subcommittees and 5 *ad hoc* groups under the Education and Examinations Committee.

#### 1. Specialty Board in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery

Chairman

Dr. Bill Yan S W

Secretary

Dr. Eddie Yau C K

Members

Dr. Chau K K

Professor Cheung L K

Dr. Eric Fung H

Dr. Roch Lee K H

#### 2. Specialty Board in Orthodontics

Chairman

Dr. John Ling Y K

Secretary

Dr. Michael Chau N Y

Members

Dr. Peter Chung C K

Professor Michael S Cooke Professor Urban Hägg

Dr. David Lau C W

Dr. Alec Tam K C

Dr. Wong T C

#### Ad hoc Group in Orthodontics

Members

Professor Urban Hägg

Dr. Michael N Y Chau

Dr. Peter C K Chung

Dr. John Y K Ling

#### 3. Specialty Board in Paediatric Dentistry

Chairman

Dr. Joseph Chan C Y

Secretary Members Dr. David O'Donnell Dr. Kenneth Hui K K

Professor Nigel M King Dr. Albert Lee M P

Professor Stephen Wei H Y

## 4. Subcommittee on Accreditation and Training in Restorative Dentistry (December 1997- September 1998)

Chairman

Dr. Chow T W

Secretary

Dr. Esmonde Corbet

Members

Dr. Gary Cheung S P

Dr. Leung T M

Dr. Lillian Low-Chen Dr. Roger Smales

Dr. William Yung C W

#### 5. Subcommittee on Education and Examinations for GDP

Chairman

Dr. Chow T W

Secretary

Dr. Peter Chung C K Dr. Gary Cheung S P

Members Dr. Gary Cheung S P
Dr. Raymond Lee K M

Dr. Zee K Y

#### 6. Continuing Medical Education Subcommittee

Chairman

Dr. Roch Lee K H

Secretary

Dr. Kenneth Hui K K

Members

Dr. Gary Cheung S P

Dr. Chow T K

Professor Urban Hägg (ex-officio)

Dr. Alec Tam K C

#### 7. Ad hoc Group on Endodontics

Convenors

Dr. Gary Cheung S P

Dr. Leung S F

#### 8. Ad hoc Group on Periodontology

Convenor

Dr. Esmonde F Corbet

Members

Professor WIR Davies

Dr. Gordon Chiu K C

Dr. Zee K W

#### 9. Ad hoc Group on Prosthodontics

Convenor

Dr. Chow T W

Members

Dr. Robin Chung W C

Dr. William Yung C W

#### 10. Ad hoc Group on Public Dental Health

Convenor

Dr. Edward Lo C M

#### **Membership Committee**

Chairman

Dr. John Ling Y K

Secretary

Dr. Esmonde Corbet

Members

Dr. Gary Cheung S P

Dr. Chow T K

Dr. Albert Lee M P

Dr. Edward To W H

#### **Scientific Meetings Committee**

Chairman

Dr. Joseph Chan C Y

Members

Professor Urban Hägg

Dr. Franklin Chan F Y

Dr. Chow T W

Dr. David Lau W C

Dr. William Yung C W

#### **Dental Specialist Manpower Planning Committee**

Chairman

**Professor WIR Davies** 

Members

Dr. Edward Lo C M

Dr. Homer Tso W K Dr. Bill Yan S W

#### PANELS OF EXAMINERS FOR CONJOINT EXAMINATIONS 1998

#### Regional Panel of Examiners for Conjoint MOS RCSEd and FCDSHK (Intermediate) Examination in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery

Professor Henk Tideman (Chief Examiner, HK)

Dr. Chau K K (HK)

Professor Cheung L K

Dr. Margaret B Comfort (HK)

Dr. Roch Lee K H (HK)

Professor Qiu W L (PRC)

Dr. Nabil Samman (HK)

Dr. Edward To W H (HK)

Dr. Bill Yan S W (HK)

Professor Yu G Y (PRC)

Professor Zhang Z K (PRC)

# Regional Panel of Examiners for Conjoint MPaedD RCSEd and FCDSHK (Intermediate) Examination in Paediatric Dentistry

Professor Nigel King (Chief Examiner, HK)

Dr. Joseph Chan C Y(HK)

Professor Minoru Nakata (Japan)

Dr. David O'Donnell (HK)

Dr. Richard P Widmer (Australia)

#### Regional Panel of Examiners for Conjoint Membership of General Dental Surgery MGDS RCSEd

Dr. Chow T W (Chief Examiner, HK)

Dr. Gary Cheung S P (HK)

Dr. Lee E C (Singapore)

Dr. Roch Lee K H (HK)

Professor Lin Q G (PRC)

Dr Peter Tay S H (Singapore)

Dr. Felix Yeung I S (HK)

Dr. William Yung C W (HK)

### MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY 1998

Number	Name
2	Dr. AW Ming Chit, Andrew
4	Dr. Martine Claude BOISSON
5	Dr. Eric Francis CARTER
6	Dr. CHAN Lap Shun, Clement
7	Dr. CHAN Man, Denis
8	Dr. CHAN Fook Yee, Franklin
9	Dr. CHAN Cho Yee, Joseph
10	Dr. CHAN Sai Kwing
11	Dr. CHAN See Ching
12	Dr. CHAN Wing Ho
13	Dr. CHAN Yuk Hing, Deborah
14	Dr. CHAU Kai Kin
15	Dr. CHENG Chi Fung, Jason
16	Dr. CHENG Wai Cheong, Warren
17	Dr. CHEUK Wan Ping, Penny
19	Dr. CHEUNG Shun Pan, Gary
20	Dr. CHEUNG Big Chu, Gloria
22	Prof. CHEUNG Lim Kwong
23	Dr. CHEUNG Ning Hoi
24	Dr. CHIEN Tai How, William
25	Dr. CHIU Siu Wai, Connie
26	Dr. CHIU Kai Chung, Gordon
27	Dr. CHOW Kiang Cheong
28	Dr. CHOW Tak Kun
29	Dr. CHOW Tak Wah
30	Dr. CHUNG Wai Chung
31	Prof. Robert Kingsley Francis CLARK
32	Dr. Margaret Bell COMFORT
33	Prof. Michael Stephen COOKE
34	Dr. Esmonde Francis CORBET
35	Prof. William Ian Rees DAVIES
36	Dr. Andrew Paul Lakshman Henry DIAS
37	Dr. FUNG Tat Him, David
39	Dr. FUNG Siu Chung
40	Dr. Rupert Ross GILDENHUYS
41	Prof. Erik Urban Oskar HÄGG
42	Dr. HO Hung Fun, Albert
46	Dr. HUI Kwok Kuen, Kenneth
47	Dr. KEI Lee Hoi
48	Dr. Nigel Martyn KING
49	Dr. John KIRKWOOD
50	Dr. KWAN Sai Kit, Joseph
51	Dr. LEE Kin Man
52	Dr. LAI Moon Cheung
53	Dr. LAM Chung Yin

	D. T. LEED LYC. D.
54	Dr. LAM Pui Kwan, Pierre
55	Dr. LAU Wai Chung, David
56	Dr. LEE Man Piu, Albert
57	Dr. LEE Kwing Hong, Roch
58	Dr. LEUNG Ting On, David
59	Dr. LEUNG Kei Yan, Peter
60	Dr. LEUNG Tat Ming
61	Dr. LI Wai Tsuen, Walter
62	Dr. LIM Lum Peng
63	Dr. LING Yu Kong, John
64	Dr. LO Chin Man, Edward
65	Dr. LO Tak Po
67	Dr. LUI Wai Kay, Wilkie
68	Dr. MA Sheung Sze, Nelson
69	Dr. MAK Kwong Leung
70	Dr. Philip Richard Holmes NEWSOME
71	Dr. David O'DONNELL
72	Dr. Ian ORMISTON
73	Dr. POON Wing Hong, David
74	Dr. Lakshman Perera SAMARANAYAKE
75	Dr. Nabil SAMMAN
76	Dr. Eli SCHWARZ
77	Dr. SO Lai Ying, Lisa
78	Dr. SO Yiu Cheong
79	Dr. TAM Kai Chiu, Alec
80	Dr. TANG Siu Chuen, Andrew
81	Dr. TANG Lai King, Endarra
82	Dr. TANG Nin Cheung, Bernie
83	Prof. Henk TIDEMAN
84	Dr. TONG Chi Kit, Antonio
85	Dr. TSANG Chee Ching, Alfred
86	Dr. TSANG Yick Sang, Jeffrey MBE
87	Dr. TSANG Wai Ming
88	Dr. TSE Siu Kwong, Anthony
89	Dr. TSE Chung Ming
90	Dr. TSE Lap Kee, Edmond
91	Dr. TSUI Fuk Sun, Michael
92	Dr. TSUI Hing Chung, Sunny
93	Dr. Richard Allen WAGNER
94	Prof. WEI Hon Yin, Stephen
95	Dr. WONG Po Ngor, Caesar
96	Dr. WONG Po Chun
97	Dr. WONG Wing Kit, Ricky
98	Dr. WONG Tin Chun
99	Dr. WONG Ym Chun Dr. WONG Wan Kit
100	Dr. WONG Wan Kit Dr. WONG Yiu Kai
102	Dr. YAN Sik Wing
103	Dr. YAU Chuen Kam
104	Dr. YEUNG Ien Sui, Felix
107	DI. I EUNG ICH SUI, FUIX

105	Dr. YEUNG Kar Hing
106	Dr. YIU Kar Yung, Cynthia
107	Dr. YIU See Yue, Eric
108	Dr. YUNG Ching Wah, William
109	Dr. KWAN L. Elizabeth
111	Dr. CHUNG Chee Keung, Peter
112	Dr. CHAU Ngai Ying
113	Dr. NG Kin Wai, Kevin
114	Dr. CHAN Yin Son, Ernest
116	Dr. YEUNG Kai Yuen
117	Dr. LAU Yun Wah
118	Dr. Margaretha BENDEUS
119	Dr. HUI Edward
120	Dr. LAI Chung Sum
121	Dr. LEUNG Fun Shing, Vincent
122	Dr. Roger SMALES
123	Dr. CHEUNG Loi Ming
124	Dr. CHOI Yuen Ling, Ruth
126	Dr. Abou-Bakr Mahmoud RABIE
127	Dr. WONG Wai Lan, Fanny
128	Dr. CHAN Wai Kwok, Alex
129	Dr. CHO Shiu Yin
130	Dr. LAM Tak Chiu, Wiley
131	Dr. TO Wai Hei, Edward
132	Dr. CHAN Wainin Richard
133	Dr. TSE Kit Ming
134	Dr. YIP Chun Kuen
135	Dr. ZEE Kwan Yat
136	Dr. CHAN Chi Hong
137	Dr. CHAI Y. John
138	Dr. CHEUNG Chui Wah, Edwin
139	Dr. HO Tat Wo, Michael
140	Dr. LEUNG Wai Keung
141	Dr. SO Hon Ching, Frankie
142	Dr. YU Sek Ho, Felix
143	Dr. YUNG Kam Ming, Louisa
144	Dr. CHAN Chi Lap, Samuel
145	Dr. TSANG Hing Suen
146	Dr. CHAN Chi Kwong, Tommy
147	Dr. LI Ka Lun, Thomas
148	Dr. HO Wai Mei
149	Prof. Frederick C. SMALES
150	Dr. PANG Harling
151	Dr. MAK Kwok Kwong, Gilbert
152	Dr. CHIK Fu Fai
153	Dr. FUNG Kin Yip, Kenneth
154	Dr. HSE Mei Yin, Kitty
155	Dr. LAM Siu Fei, Lisa
156	Dr. LAU Chi Kai, George
<del>-</del>	——————————————————————————————————————

157	Dr. LAU Wai Sum, Eilly
158	Prof. Anne Sinclair McMILLAN
159	Dr. CHEN Kam Fai
160	Dr. LIE KEN JIE Ket Phoei Ronny
161	Dr. HO Fu Tak
162	Dr. POON Hung Wai
163	Dr. YUEN Kwok Wah
164	Dr. Carlo CASTELLUCCI
165	Dr. CHOW Kwok Fai
166	Dr. VATTASINGH Beatrice Busabakorn
167	Dr. YEUNG Wai Kit, Richie
168	Dr. YU Ngok Fung
169	Dr. TONG Tai Wing, Winston
107	

#### **Honorary Fellows**

1.	Prof. QUI Wei Liu
2.	Prof. REN Cai Nian
3.	Prof. ZHANG Zhen Kang
4.	<b>Prof. Sir David TODD</b>
5.	Mr Eric PEAKE
6.	Dr. Margaret H E SEWARD
7.	Prof. FU Min kui

As of 29<sup>th</sup> November 1998, there were 156 Fellows and 7 Honorary Fellows on the College Register. A total of thirty-four nominations were approved as Fellows by Council during the year 1998 (Membership Committee Report).

